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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEERWR D

OPERATION REVIEW ¥ikEEE

The operational results of the two liquid product terminals of Hans R - ZERBEBRAR AT ([ ARAF ) KA
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the MIBAR([AEE |REEMRELEZ
“Group”) operating in Panyu ["XHIT") and Dongguan ("DZIT") plus  MRER(CE RS ([/NEACE | R EM
the warehouse and logistic centre for solid chemical products  FA{bJE ) ZE&EEEURNNED 2 EE
located in Panyu (the “Solid Warehousing Centre”] during the year {LE2FEENRFO([E/LEEF L)

are set forth as follows: ZRIBBE T
XHIT DZIT
PMRELE RMBILE

Operational statistics = - 2014 Change % 2014 Change %

—E-mE -3 = By |ZB-mE | =% i

Liquid product terminal, BICERBE
storage and transshipment ~ EFE LK

services BRIk
Number of vessels visited e HF B
- foreign —Mt 189 187 +1.1 14 136 -16.2
- domestic N 332 314 +5.7 211 212 -05
Number of trucks served to W EHZ

pick up cargoes EEYA 18829 13209 {25 30158 2476 218
Number of drums filled EREE 48,118 51,089 -58 795 1,895 -58.0
Transshipment volume L

(metric ton) (AMg)
- ils —hm - - - 106,616 91,949 +15.9
- petrochemicals R al|d: 162,587 170,389 -4.6 2,157 23,905 -91.0
Port jetty throughput ISR A 2

(metric ton) (AlE) 932,004 865,803 +7.6 1,234,680 1342917 -8.1
Tank farm throughput HFREREHS

(metric ton) (ANE) 1,319,864 1,170,068 +12.8 2,020,617 2,062,161 -2.0

Solid chemical warehousing EB&{t 2

services RERY%
Floor area leased out (m?) BHANEERE
(EFK) 25,104 26,800 -3  N/AREA NATER  NATEAR
Cargoes received (metric ton) Y& E (AH) 73,095 85,262 -143  N/AREBR NATER NATER
Cargoes issued (metric ton)  EEE (M) 70,463 90,390 -220  N/ARER NANER  NATER

EEAERERAT —T-WMEEH 5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWR D

Liquid Product Terminal Business

XHIT

The operating activities in XHIT continuously improved during 2014.
Port jetty throughput and tank farm throughput increased by 7.6%
and 12.8% respectively on a year on year basis. The major reason
of the improvements was the introduction of new clients, while the
existing clients continued to keep their storage volume growth.
Although the transshipment volume decreased by 4.6%, number
of trucks served to pick up cargoes increased significantly, which
was up by 42.5% on a year on year basis as some clients picked up
their cargoes by trucks instead of by vessels. Subject to sluggish
oil market trading volume, the average utilization of fuel oil tanks
still maintained at relatively low level of 16% (2013: 16%) but the
average utilization rate of chemical tanks was kept at a high of
93% in 2014 (2013: 93%).

DzZIT

With the sluggish oil market as well as keen competition set in
during the year 2014, the major operational statistics in DZIT were
down compared with 2013. Port jetty throughput and tank farm
throughput decreased by 8.1% and 2.0% respectively on a year on
year basis. The Group tried its best to tap into market potentials
and to expand its oil and chemical storage volume. Meanwhile,
it proactively diversified its value added services to improve its
transshipment business with the utilization of spare capacity
from jetties. In 2014, transshipment volume for oils reached
approximately 107 thousand metric tons, representing an increase
of 15.9% from 2013. The yearly average lease out rate of tank
farm was approximately 80.7% in 2014, an decrease of about 2
percentage points on a year on year basis.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

As for the solid chemical warehousing business, cargoes received
and issued decreased by 14.3% and 22.0% in 2014 respectively as
compared with last year. The average floor areas leased out rate
decreased by 4.3% from 82.0% in 2013 to 77.7% in 2014. These
operations were mainly impacted by the slowdown economy.

RALE mISEER

NRAILE
PNRACER-ZZE—NF 2 &L EEIHE
WE-HHEARERTGFREEATESD 5
WEENT6%12.8% MERFNFEL
SRR RARPEBRERFSLT TSR
K- #REHHEMDL6%  BREW
BY 2 EHEEE BREREN - RFEBIRE
425%  ERRETEFEAESEAREE
MEBEWREMATS - BRNAATSER S8R
55 Hult BB TERNESFERARIM
FER16%( 2T —ZF : 16%) BKKF
mtB2RETFE FHUFERER-_F—N
FRIEERIBU(ZE—=F : 3% )05
K o

RMNALE

HAGHMISES M-S —NFEHF
R BENACEZ FZEBRITHTER
TE-ZFHMTH® - BEATENETF
BEATED BIRF FES8.1%5&2.0% o A&
SEEEEARSHEEMISBEARARE
EHmRtERETE - B EESH
FIFEERERS - UWIRHT ZRERKE
WIRAEEHER - R-_F—F - A
B S S EA107,00080 T —=
FEAI59% - FFBEEAR-Z—NF 2
BREFHAB R A80.7% » HERIL
R EERE

ERtERAEEL
HERBTEREEESMS  —T—NF
ZWEERBEEDFHREF LD 14.3%
$220% - R=—ZT—F - BB FHE
EEMBERFLL3% BT —=%82.0%
BETT 1%  BEEBEIEILBERESY
2,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWWR D

Operating financials
The Group's reportable segments represent XHIT and DZIT. The
breakdown of turnovers of XHIT and DZIT are as follows:

XHIT
MRRILE

2014
“E-BF -z

HK$'000 % HK$'000
Tan % BT

REnBHE
AEBE A RE D F AN EALERFM
AlLE - PMRACERRMALEZEE
BRERARANT ¢

B8 BRIk

Terminal, storage and

transshipment income E LT ON 74,137 71.2 75,115
Port income BOWA 3,232 31 3,285
Solid chemical warehousing BRI 2R

income EERA 26,725 5.7 25,955
XHIT

The turnover from the provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment services for liquid products in XHIT was about
HK$77.4 million during the year, representing a decrease of 1.3%
compared with the last year. Income from oil and chemical storage
dropped by 7.4% and 2.0% respectively on a year on year basis,
due to keen market competitions, resulting in decrease in storage
lease out rates in 2014. Income from transshipment services
decreased by 20.6%, while port income kept flat with 2013.

The revenue from the Solid Warehousing Centre increased
slightly by 3.0% compared with the last year. Nevertheless the
income from handling services was HK$6.4 million, representing
an increase of 21.3% from 2013, the income from solid chemical
warehousing income was HK$20.3 million, representing a
decrease of 1.8% on a year on year basis.

DzIT

The turnover of DZIT was HK$107.4 million in 2014, representing
a decrease of 7.5% compared with the last year. Nevertheless the
income from transshipment increased by 53.9% to HK$1.7 million
in 2014. The oil and chemical storage as well as port income were
HK$90.9 million and HK$1.6 million respectively, representing a
decrease of 7.5% and 31.7% respectively on a year on year basis.
The drop was mainly attributable from the sluggish oil market and
keen competition in Dongguan area in 2014.

EBRRARAT —T-NEFER

pzIT
BHELE
2014
-g-ng

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#7 T
720 105,824 98.5 113,742 98.0
31 1,588 15 2324 20

%9 NATER NATER NANER  NATER
NRALRE
NEACERFARIRERIEE « iFTFUE
EHRS 2 EEBHNBTTOEET &
EFTEI3% - REMBMEERETFZ
WADRIIRET®7.4%K%20%  ttJ5H
RZE—NFHRINTSRFEEAT T
TR TERATE o 2K B 88 R 1% < W AR
20.6% * MABLOWABR T —=FFF

BB EF LRSS EFIEF3.0% - @&
FREFEBCEREEZRAL20308%5
TC  HRFERA1.8% o AT - R A ERIEARTE
ZWABLOEBTTL R —=F1EM
21.3% ©

RMALE
HNALER - —NF 2 EEFHE 074
BT WEERMLDT75% - BE KB EEH
YA =T — U FH#I153.9% = 170875
UL AmAMREEREEUEREORA
DRI A9,0908 BT R10BETT  BHFEH
B A 7.5% %31.7% c THREIERHN -
T—NF R @R AT SR REF
RUBTEL



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWR D

OUTLOOK

The sluggish economy coupled with the sharp and drastic collapse
of international oil prices in second half of 2014 hampered the
oil and oil related businesses around the world. The domestic
oil trading activities and participants were adversely affected,
thus the volume of cargoes flew through the region dropped
significantly as a result thereof. The policy changes and economic
growth which we previously perceived did not turn out as expected
in terms of speed or magnitude. However, with the effort and
various measures initiated by the PRC Government in early 2015,
we believed the China’s economy would grow not as fast as in
previous years but in a reasonably stable pace, which would bring
in moderate growth in demand for oil and chemical products and
flows of liquid cargoes in and out of the region. Furthermore, the
establishment of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau free trade zone,
the liberalization of importation of crude oil and oil products into
actual policies, will be the booster of the demand for terminal
services and facilities in coming years thus will become the
sources of our business growth.

o Liquid Product Terminal Business

Despite the sluggish market conditions and the landsliding
international oil prices throughout 2014, we expect
improvements in these areas in 2015. PRC domestic economy
will grow in a modest pace. Trading activities in terms of
volume and frequency will start coming back eventually.
The players remain in the arena will gain the benefits of the
improved business environment. In this respect, the Group
will continue to implement our existing strategies to fully
leverage our existing facilities and improve the efficiency
and utilization of our assets. Meanwhile, we will expand our
value added services including transshipment and blending
of products to cater our clients” demand and requirements.
We shall proactively utilize our spare port capacity and
reserved land in DZIT, in various formats, such as business
cooperation with our customers, leasing them with tailor-
made new facilities and services, and leasing them certain
areas of land to do their own business, etc. Of course, we will
continue to find opportunities to diversify our business scopes
and look for growth areas.

With the efforts of all the team members in the Group, we are
confident that the Group would turn around its results and
return its shareholders in the coming years.

RE

RIS BN LB MER —T—OFT
FESBRY  YRERNLH&AHE
MEBHERNE - BALHREZESH N
REQARBYZITNEE  AmM<RAD
EREREK » HFICAEFTNBRES K
RERR  TwEREMEBEEL - R
BERIEH - AMARTEBRAR_-"F—h
FOMELB N EFARNEREE - A
5 B EH IR KRR EAARRESF - 75
AR R A IERERKRF - BRAmeE R
BRLEARANBEEYREN T RS
FoRAER - BEF  KZBBRAERE
[0 B A i E am A O D R AR R BER
75 e 3 1 18 5 BB AR TS MR MR B R
AR AN B R T IE R AV JRER o

o BILERBERR
WA T -MFE2FEMRKSS - BER
HEARAE  BHABEHZSEIN
“2-hFBERRE - PELERS
PURMAPRIER - EHEEHHE K
BRREAGER - BTRANRES
XERUENHERE - B =
AEBEGEEETRARE - 2HE
RINERE - WEEEENREE R E
% - Al - HFHSREAEBERS
BREEMBH LN - HEEFPHE
EREF - LB ER TS FARM
AIEEMEORETERRERM -
BEAREETRSR - fIMERP
EBEE - MRS HEFROMRE
KR - MRS HES T L EmEHE

BRELEARGERE - ER - BAE
EEDERS S LBEREBE®

C WESKIE R -

BEAKBNZEEBRKERLE
B BABEOARERKEFHE
BRAIEERE  RERRERER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWWR D

. Solid Warehousing Centre
We will continuously try every effort to expand our market
for the Group's solid warehousing centre business in
2015. We maintain the provision of quality services, expand
customer base, and especially introduce high-end renowned
multinational companies to land on our Centre to expand its
market share. We expect that the business will realize stable

o BEtAREHL
R-ZZE—0F  HBABEEZEHARE
AEBEBECREERLEBNTE - &
MEEERESEZREREBERE
R FRIESI A S A E BB A EE
HERFNPL - UBRRETISMNE -
HAERRBHERARARBERR -

growth in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt 35 1o R

2014 2013 Changes
—E-mFE —FT—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHETT
Turnover 3] 211,506 220,421 -4.0
Turnover less direct costs and EEBEMREERA
operating expenses e 18,028 24,875 -27.5
Loss before interest and tax BB N B TR A
("LBIT") EE(LBIT)) (36,326) (34,589) +5.0
Loss attributable to equity PAYNEI 1S
shareholders of the Company FE(S B (108,814) (108,061) +0.7
Earnings before interest, tax, BRALE -~ THIE -
depreciation and amortisation IrE M B EE A A
("EBITDA") ([EBITDAL) 90,687 96,997 -6.5
Gross margin EF=E 8.5% 11.3% -24.8
Net loss margin R (54.5%) (52.1%) +4.6
Basis loss per share (HK cents] BREREE B (2.92) (2.90] +0.7
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) SRR #EEEE GEWL) (2.92) (2.90) +0.7

EBRFERAT —T-HNFFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

In 2014, the Group's turnover was HK$211.5 million, representing a
slight decrease of 4.0% on a year on year basis. Nevertheless, the
turnover of Solid Warehousing Centre during the year was HK$26.7
million, representing a slight increase of 3.0% from last year.
The increase was mainly attributable to the increase of HK$6.4
million generated from handling services income, representing
anincrease of 21.3% on a year on year basis. XHIT and DZIT
generated turnover of HK$77.4 million and HK$107.4 million
respectively to the Group in 2014, representing a decrease of 1.3%
and 7.5% respectively. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in overall average lease out rate in 2014 as compared
to last year. In this connection, the gross operating profits were
HK$18.0 million, down by 27.5% and the gross margin declined
from 11.3% in 2013 to 8.5% in 2014. LBIT for the year was HK$36.3
million (2013: HK$34.6 million) and EBITDA for the year was
HK$90.7 million (2013: HK$97.0 million). The loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$108.8 million, barely
remained at the same level as last year. The basic and diluted loss
per share for the year slightly increased to 2.92 Hong Kong cents
(2013: basic and diluted loss per share of 2.90 Hong Kong cents).

Capital structure, liquidity and gearing

The Group's financial position remained stable. As at 31 December
2014, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$46.0 million (2013: HK$57.0 million). Most of the
funds were held in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi yuan ("RMB”] and
US dollar.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's current ratio was 1.23
(2013: 1.72]. The change in ratio was mainly attributable to the
increase of bank loan repayable within one year during the year.
The Group's gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities to total equity)
as at 31 December 2014 was 7.43 (2013: 4.73). The increase was
attributable to the reduction of shareholder’s equity in respect of
the loss incurred during the year.

Financial resources

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is
sufficient for the daily requirements for current operations. Due
attention will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the
latest developments of the Group in order to ensure the efficient
use of financial resources.

R —F ANEFBZLEELR2115E
BIT - IREEBUR 4% o BEFEE(LAES
DRERZ EERAR26I0E BT BEFE
H#N03.0% ° EMEBAREZERBBA L

Fro40&8 BT » R EIBIRE21.3% © SR -
NRALCEREMNALEER ZZ—NF

z*%%%i%%uz%fm%%ﬁm.0741%;‘%

DRERA1.3% K 7.5% © g EERR
—UFREFYRAEREEFTRDAH
@z k- LEENAR18008 BT 0 B
27.5% @ MEMEAHR-F—=Fm113%
BE T —PUFH85% - FRZBRFE R

FRIERTEIE A3,308 B L ( T — =4 :
34608B7T)  MEAZKHRFE ~ FiIE -
FERBHEMEMANAIOEBT(ZE
—=F 97008 870) - AAFIREEN
B8 A1.088(88 T - MAFHFATHE
KFE - FRZEBREARBIEEBES
29281 T —=F : FREALEEE
BA2.9058140) -

BEXGH RBEEREFABRLR
REE W BARNRFIBE - R=F—
Ft+t-A=1t—8H" Kglzfﬁé&fﬁi
EEERRENRLOIEET(ZE—=
F:57008ET) - ABHETAETT
ARBTARE DEETHE -

R-ZZE—NF+-_A=+—H AEEZ
MR B 23(ZE—=F 1 1.72) - B
LhEZBICEBRRFRNER —FAEE
RISRITEFIEMATE - RZZE—MF+=

A=1t—B AEEzEX BELXR(EE
RBERERAEER) RTLB(ZF—=F
4.73) < 1BIE T B HNFASRFEEEHK
RSP

MBEIR
BRReFEELEFHEERTRERIA
FERIREE AR 2 EMSE - KRS NLEE
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MBRZBER  KMERERUHER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$1,207 million
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$1,239 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the finance cost charged to profit or loss
was approximately HK$79.2 million (2013: HK$80.9 million).

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for
the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 25% (2013: 25%).

Exposure to fluctuation in exchanges rate and related hedge
The Group’'s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as
well. Management is of the opinion that the Group's exposure
to foreign exchange rate risks is not significant, and hedging by
means of derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.

Charge on group assets

The Group has provided the Lender with certain of the Group's
fixed assets and certain future non-cancellable operating lease
receivables as collaterals for the banking facilities granted.

Capital commitment

At 31 December 2014, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and storage
facilities amounted to HK$20 million (2013: HK$22 million).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately HK$149 million (2013: HK$149 million).

Contingent liabilities
At 31 December 2014, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

Final dividend
The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

EBRFERAT —T-HNFFR
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEAETE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 55, joined the Company as Chairman in 2002.
He has many years of experience in China business particularly in
the provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals,
properties investments and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 55, joined the Company as
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company in 2006. Mr. Fung
is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years of
experience in financial management and corporate finance for
multinational corporations and listed companies and has worked
in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and
Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited ("GDPC"), Guangdong [Panyu) Petrochemical Storage
& Transportation Ltd ("GD (Panyu)”) and BEzEm MBI AL
BEHEAER AT ("EMEE"). She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to
that, she had worked in various government departments and
large State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of
Guangdong Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong
Limited, etc. She has more than 20 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Liu graduated from Zhongshan University in
1989 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds
the auditor qualification certificate of speciality and technology
issued by the Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office of the
People’'s Republic of China ("PRC").

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 49, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in 2007. He joined the Company as Chief
Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and obtained the
qualification of engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience
in petrochemical industry. He has expertise in petrochemical
specialized technology and is familiar with financial accounting
policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-depth
knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He had
served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key
positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore
branch, deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the
Hong Kong branch.

HITES

HELLE 5558  —TTE_FMBEARQ
HEXE—B - BRERTEEE 75,\
ehHEkALERES NTEEHMERE
KRBT ERBSFER -

/% IR AE  B55%  R-TFRAFMAKR

DA HEM AR T?‘M% YR =F
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 58, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2002. He is also the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from The University of East
Asia. He is also a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held a number of positions with
companies including Sino Land Company Limited and Henderson
Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is now an executive
director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited and the chief
financial officer of Guangdong Holdings Limited. Besides, he has
been redesigned from a non-executive director to an executive
director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (previously named as
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) in 2012 and is a non-executive
director of Guangdong Investment Limited, an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and China
South City Holdings Limited, the securities of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of Sun Century
Group Limited [formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited),
the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, for the
period from March 2010 to May 2011.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 43, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2005. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan
was an independent director of China Nutrifruit Group Limited
until 2012, the securities of which are listed on the American
Stock Exchange and he resigned as an independent non-executive
director of China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Oriental City Group Holdings Limited) in 2013, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan is
now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited,
the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose, aged 50, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2013. She is also a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Miss Cheung graduated from York University, Canada
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Mass Communication and
Psychology. She further continued her education in finance at
Harvard University, Massachusetts, USA. Miss Cheung has over
25 years of extensive experience in mining resources, oil and
gas, telecommunications, broadcasting, multimedia, consumer
electronics and financial institutions. She has held executive
positions in listed companies including EPI (Holdings] Limited,
Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited, Cable & Wireless HKT Limited,
Beenz and Satellite Television Asian Region, STAR TV. Miss
Cheung expertise is in business investment, corporate finance,
capital markets, marketing and sales. Miss Cheung is now the
Managing Director of the Maryville Group Limited with businesses
in mining resources, broadcasting and principal investment.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 65, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr.
Chen was a deputy factory manager for a large petrochemical
company in Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of
experience in the management of storage operations for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 46, is a director and a general manger of HJH
BB, He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of
oil and petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree
of corporate management. He is now fully responsible for the
management of the infrastructure and construction project in
Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 41, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD [Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco.
He joined GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience
in trading and marketing in the business of storage for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 43, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu].
Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce and
majored in oil storage and transportation operation. He joined GD
(Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of experience in business
operation and import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 58, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyul.
Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the deputy general
manager of sales department of F/5{LEEE A 7). He was engaged
in the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has
extensive experience in the sales and marketing management of
petroleum products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 47, is the deputy financial controller of GD
(Panyu) and a director and a deputy financial controller of F M
. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified
Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants and has professional accountant qualification
in PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code"] contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Board is of the view that
throughout the year, the Company has complied with the CG Code
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2
which deviations are explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies
and plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while
the day-today operations of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its
business needs.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman, Chief Executive and
Member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committe]

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee]

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director in respect of his/her
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive directors except for Miss Cheung Siu
Yuen, Rose does not have a specific term of appointment.

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose is engaged on a letter of appointment
for independent non-executive director for a term of 3 years
commencing 31 May 2013.

Pursuant to the Company’s article of association, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the Company’s general meeting and any
directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, directors attended
seminars and training sessions arranged by various professional
institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant reading materials
including the updates on the business, operations, corporate
governance, legal and regulatory matters have been provided to all
directors for their reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Six Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2014.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication] record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESRAALE/ ERTEERE

Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors 2 Eze REZRE  HMZRE  ENZEE® RREFAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. David An (Chairman of the Boardand ~ Bif8 sk (EZ2 1
Chief Executive] FITEAEH) 56 N/ATER 01 NATER on
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEBEE 86 NATER  NARER  NATEA N
Ms. Liu Zhijun IFERL b/6 NIANER N/ANER N/ANER /1
Mr. Zhang Lei REXE o6 NATER  NATER  NATER 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung FR®EE 8/ N [l 22 N
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRiRE L 8/b 1/1 N 22 N
Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose EXN G b/6 11 N 22 N
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held BREHEES SR - FAEFEIFENT

meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in August
2013. A summary of this Policy, together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how. All Board appointments will be based on
merits, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board annually in the Corporate Governance Report and monitor
the implementation of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors.
Two of them are women. Three of them are independent non-
executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills
and know-how.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure
the balance of power and authority. However, in view of the
fact that the Group's core business is carried out by the PRC
subsidiaries, and that the Chief Operating Officer, China (de facto
Chief Executive), who managed the core business through those
subsidiaries, is a separate person, the Board considers there is no
necessity to separate the Chief Executive at the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that
his appointment of the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited's website and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the
members of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai,
Tony is the chairman of the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the
independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorships by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2014 to (i) ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the
requirements of the business of the Company; and [ii) to review
and recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for re-
election at the Company’s 2014 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-
executive directors are the members of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the
committee.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Chief Executive of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and senior executives during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors (including two independent non-executive
directors who possess the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise) and
Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items before submission to the
Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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(c] To review the Company's financial reporting system and risk
management systems.

(d] To review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
measures, including the functions of account and financial
reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the Group’'s human
resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions.

(e} To review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 to (i) review audited annual financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and unaudited interim financial
results for the half-year ended 30 June 2014; (i) to review financial
reporting, internal control and compliance procedures; and [iii)
to review the scope of work and make recommendations on the
appointment of the auditors.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

All the directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the financial statements, respectively.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”] as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code [the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 37 to 38.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2014 was disclosed on page 74.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, and reviewing its effectiveness on an annual
basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.
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The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating
and monitoring the system of internal control and for providing
assurance to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its
own view on effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on
the information and assurances provided to it.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular
review and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate
these risks. The management of the Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders” meetings
are voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results
are also posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company immediately after the relevant
shareholders” meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’'s articles of association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal
place of business, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the procedures posted on the Company’s
website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong [For the attention of the
Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The shareholders” meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board, all independent non-executive directors,
and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) and
where applicable, the independent Board committee, are available
at the general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the directors were unable
to attend the last annual general meeting held on 19 May 2014 due
to business engagement. They will use their best endeavours to
attend all future shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect
of good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and
regulatory regime. Designated senior management maintains
regular dialogue with existing shareholders and potential
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 39.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment
of bank loan of the Group, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil). However, the Board of Directors will determine
dividend distribution policies once the Group has secured stable
income from the operations in coming years.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in
note 22 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$169 million (2013: HK$173 million).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements of fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. David An [Chairman)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’'s articles of association,
Mr. David An, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 31 May 2013, subject to, inter alia, retirement
from office by rotation at least once every three years and re-
election in accordance with the Company's articles of association.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company's articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
directors of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) which have been
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers [the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares
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BT AESHETESFRRHNEESTR
(MZEFRNDBTHEAR A MBI fZ
EERABWT
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Approximate percentage

to the issued share capital
of the Company

REE ERRREHTREAZBNBEIL
Long Short Long Short
Name of director Nature of interest Positions positions Positions positions
EEnA ERtE HR KE HR KR
Mr. David An * Corporate 2 7] 2,5948,203,980 Nil £ 68.27% Nil £
BRI A (Note Hizt 1)

Personal fEA 218,390,000 Nil f% 5.85% Nil 4%

Note: BRE -

1. The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme
Wise Investments Ltd ("Extreme Wise”) and 2,338,430,000 shares
by Vand Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited ("Vand Petro-
Chemicals”), both of which are wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By
virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to have corporate interest in
the 2,548,203,980 shares.

Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the
Chief Executive of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors of the Company and their associates had any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 21 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures])
of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company’'s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and the code provisions ("Code
Provision”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code ("CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company
regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.
Throughout the year 2014, the Company has complied with the CG
Code except for the deviations from the Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1
and E.1.2. For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 16 to 28.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

FERRARADBAREF 2EERAR

BHE_Z—NF+-_A=1+—H  BRR(T
BRARNAER)RARARD MAERND
o BEREE S MR G EXVERE 2K
FINHEMARBIRE 2 SRR - X
BN A R RIRIEE 77 R ERPIF336
FREFEZ ERMAZEEIARIT

AARBREE0.1I0BTZEER
Approximate percentage

to the issued share capital
of the Company

RHEE HAEQXFERITRAZEBANB L

Long Short Long Short

Name of shareholder Positions Positions Positions Positions

BERMEA HaE KB HE KB

Mr. David An Ef& 54 (Note FizE 1) 2,766,593,980 Nil £& 74.12% Nil £

Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note FfizF 1) 2,338,430,000 Nil £ 62.65% Nil £

Dubai World Corporation (Note Fff#F 2] 370,000,000 Nil £ 9.91% Nil £

Extreme Wise (Note Fff&F 1) 209,773,980 Nil £ 5.62% Nil £
Notes: B

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both companies
being wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. David
An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. David
An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the
Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-
owned by Dubai World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company
has not been notified by any persons [other than directors or
the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

EBRFERAT —T-HNFFR

1. %ERMPHE218390,000 HEE L LE
HEEARA - 209,773,98008 FExtreme
Wise B # £F &  if1 2,338,430,000 A% 8l
fiVand Petro-ChemicalsEEHEHE ' MW
HMARIMYHBRERLIEZEHRE - RIE
FHERBEED  BEEEERREAER
%2,766,593,980 IR & 10 R HE B 2 o H
& %L 4 A Extreme Wise * Vand Petro-
Chemicals R A RRZESE

2. ZERMAPony HK WorldE##FHR - M
%/~ 77583 Dubai World Corporationf&#
2EHEE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the Share Option
Scheme”]. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The
scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of
such scheme and expires on 27 December 2022.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company (the “directors”) may at their discretion grant options
to any eligible participantincluding any employee, director,
consultant, advisor, agent, business affiliate, business partner,
joint venture partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider
of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company as may be determined by the directors from time to time
to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. The maximum number
of shares in respect to which options may be granted under the
scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has
been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of issued share capital of the Company or with
a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the shareholders of the Company.
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Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may
be determined by the directors. The exercise price is determined
by the directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets on the date of the grant of the options and the average
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the options.

MAIOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers comprised approximately 32.2% of the
Group's total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 11.2% of the Group’s total
turnover. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers comprised approximately 51.3% of the Group’'s
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier were approximately 14.1% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or
any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 445 employees (2013: 450), 430 (2013: 436) of which
worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget
which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group’s employees to contribute their best efforts and to make
maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance with the
relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement,
medical, workman compensation and unemployment insurance as
well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the PRC. With
these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’'s listed
securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2014, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2014, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited ("the Company”] and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”] set out on pages 39 to 111, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
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expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which describes that the Group
expects to repay bank loans and interest totalling HK$137,917,000
within one year and consequently, the Group’s ability to meet these
liquidity requirements depend on its ability to generate sufficient
net cash inflows from future operations and/or other sources. Note
1(b) also explains that there is uncertainty about the execution
of the arbitration award. These facts and circumstances indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on (i)
the Group’'s ability to generate sufficient cash flows from future
operations and/or other sources to meet its liquidity commitments;
and (i) the execution of the arbitration award. Further details are
set out in note 1(b). The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result should the Group be
unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —T—WF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 751K )

2014
—E-mEF
$°000
T
Turnover M 3 211,506 220,421
Direct costs and operating expenses B A K& %4 & (193,478) (195,546)
18,028 24,875
Other net income/(loss) Hiplkzs, (518 )55 4 3,427 (265)
Administrative expenses THEHR (57,781) (59,199)
Loss from operations R EE (36,326) (34,589)
Finance costs EUR T IDWIN 5(a) (79,165) (80,855
Loss before taxation BrBiATES I8 5 (115,491) (115,444)
Income tax Fris#i 6la) 125 584
Loss for the year FREE (115,366) (114,860)
Attributable to: FEAE -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIIEE (108,814) (108,061)
Non-controlling interests eI S (6,552) (6,799)
Loss for the year FRER (115,366) (114,860)
Loss per share BREE 10
- basic — B (2.92 centsfll)  (2.90 centsfil)
— diluted — g (2.92 centsflil)  (2.90 centsfll)

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial FRFL6EE111E Z M FBAERK I FHT S
statements. Wz —HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZHEWER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE T —NF+-_A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7THI7R)

Loss for the year FREER

Other comprehensive income for the year: FRAEMEMEUE :

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to HER[REEFH DIEE

consolidated income statement: REBRAMIER -
- Exchange differences on translation of —HREE QR RE
financial statements of subsidiaries ZIEHR =R

Total comprehensive income for theyear FRA2HEUEHHELE

Attributable to: PE1h -
Equity shareholders of the Company RABIIRER
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R A

Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZEUKZEHALE

2014

—ET—MF

$’000

T
(115,366) (114,860)
(1,572) 14,064
(116,938) (100,79¢4)
(110,241) (95,141)
(6,697) (5,655)
(116,938) (100,796)

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial FHRFL6EE111E Z Mt AAER IS
statements. k2 —EbD o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HmeEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —T—WF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 751K )

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Property, plant and equipment

- Interests in land held for own use

under operating leases
Prepayments for construction costs
Intangible assets

Current assets

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

Consumable parts

Trade and other receivables

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Bank loans

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

EBRRARAT —TEER

FRBEE
EEEE
b /EN

— REKEHEREER

Z TS
FREERAR 2 BN IR
BVEE

RBEE

RIBKEHERIEB R
o b 1 5o

HFEM

B 5 ML EIRIR

AR IR

RAekREeFEAAR

REAE
HAb MR R E A
RITEN

REBEEFE
HEERRBAE

1

11(b)

12

11(b)

14
18(a)
15(a)

2014
—E-mF

$’000
Tt

1,269,767 1,384,185
265,848 273,276
21,558 27,399
2,208 2,413
1,559,381 1,687,273
7,145 7,823
16,463 16,881
62,680 43,417
18,630 19,161
46,032 56,993
150,950 144,275
59,182 55,465
63,380 28,439
122,562 83,904
I 28,388 . 80.371..
1,587,769 1,747,644
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REEERMEX

for the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LATTIR)

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Bank loans

Amounts due to related parties

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBER
EERIARE
RITEN

FES AR 5 2 3R

BEFRE

BARKEE
EEEN
fFé

RAFRR
PEh

FFERER

s

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 March 2015.

David An
HiE

Chairman

1

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial

statements.
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2014
—E-mEF
$’000
T
18(b) 5,663 6,276
17 1,143,366 1,210,887
19 235,961 210,764
1,384,990 1,427,927
202,779 319,717
22(b) 373,264 373,264
(198,229) (87,988)
175,035 285,276
27,744 34,441
202,779 319,717

RZE—hAF=A-THBEZEEgHE
R R RETIEE -

Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
B
Executive Director

HITEE

BN ELE RN A Z MR F R 75
HR AP -
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BALANCE SHEET
BEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —T—WF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 751K )

2014
—E-mF
$°000
T
Non-current asset EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NERPEE NI 13 569,295 573,682
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables &1+ 718 I E fth fE U 7k 18 14 4,460 4,305
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFLEEIER 15(a) 169 28
4,629 4,333
Current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hh R RIE MEHRE A 16 2,114 2,102
Net current assets raEEdMeE 2515 2231
Total assets less current liability #AEERREAR 571,810 575,913
Non-current liability kRBAE
Amount due to a related party FEN — 2 Bt 5 19 30,000 30,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 541,810 545,913
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 22(a)
Share capital R& A 22(b) 373,264 373,264
Reserves B 168,546 172,649
TOTAL EQUITY AR 541,810 545,913

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson R-ZE—RE=A-_+THAEEZ&H &

25 March 2015. NIRRT o
David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
HE BEH
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITEE

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial FRFL6EE111E Z M FBAERK I SFHT
statements. HFzz—HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE T —NF+-_A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LATTIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARRELRS

Non-

Share Share Special  Translation Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

B REE  RERE ENRE  OERE RiER aft  FERER ams

§7000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T L P

Balanceat1January2013  R=Z-Z&
-B-RAzEH 373,264 710477 (251,428 104,509 31,947 588,352) 380,417 40,09 420513

Changes inequity for 2013:  —B—-=E#%%E

Loss for the year ENER - - - - - (108,081 (108,01) (6,799) (114,860)
Other comprehensive income  Ei 2 FIlE - - - 12,920 - - 12,920 1,144 14,064
Total comprehensive income 2 ENE A - - - 12,920 - (108,061) (95,141) (5,455) (100,79)

Balance at 31 December 2013 R=F-=#
and 1 January 2014 tZAZ+-BR
“2-mE-f-B
i 373,264 710,477 (251,628) 17,629 31,947 (696,413) 285,276 34,441 319,17

Changesin equity for 2014: —Z-MERHLEH

Loss for the year ENER - - - - - (108,814)  (108,814) (65520  (115,366)
Other comprehensive income  Et 2 EE - - - (1,627) - - (1,627) (145) (1,572)
Total comprehensive income 2 EEHEH - - - (1,627) - (108,814) (110,241) (6,697) 116,938)

Balance at 31 December 2014 R=Z-M&E
TZB=1-H
&8 373,264 710,477 (251,628) 116,002 31,947 (805,227) 175,035 27,74 202,719

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial FHRFL6EE111E Z Mt AAER IS
statements. k2 —EbD o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —T—WF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 751K )

2014
—E-mF
$’000
Tt
Operating activities TR
Cash generated from operations KBRS RE 15(b) 75,813 94,740
Net cash generated from operating Z¥;EFEEREFHE
activities 75,813 94,740__
Investing activities RETE
Capital expenditure B (5,292) (15,350)
Interest received BHFE 368 672
Proceeds from disposals of property, (H&E¥Z « BE Mk H
plant and equipment ZATS50A 5 897
Net cash used in investing activities REFE AR EFE [4,919] ___________ [13781]
Financing activities ALEEE
Interest paid BEARFE (79,211) (81,069)
Advances from a related party B 7 B S IR 32,000 44,667
Repayment to a related party EE RN 5 0B (6,311) (37,553)
Proceeds from new bank loan FIRITE RIS RUE - 25,035
Repayment of bank loan BERITEN (28,244) (49,967)
Net cash used in financing activities B& ZEFFAREFHE _ Ilen7e8) (98,887)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESESEEERD
equivalents pezd-c] (10,872) (17,928)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZzHRE&ERE
1 January Z£EEE 56,993 73,571

Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEEZSE X

changes (89) 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=-—A=+—HzHE%
31 December RRSZEEAR 15(a) 46,032 56,993

The notes on pages 46 to 111 form part of these financial ERFLEE1118E 2 M 5EBERKILSFE
statements. Wz —HH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTFIR « SHTRERIN)

1

46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"], which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c] provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

1

BARECR
(a) &EEH

W EERA MBS RR TIRIBMAE
A Z(EERBRELEADCE
BUBREERD DR - LR
HRREEREEgtmAe (&
ABEEEAE )BEMZAEER
Z BRI E M RELER)
(BEEFEANEBEE
Al k2 - BBEAREFRA
F(ERBRRIGH) 2 ERBER
E o WEMBERRIGTE BB
BRZMBRRREZ LMARA
(TEMRADBERZWERE -
AEERAZERGTBRRBE
T -

BRGRAAGCB/METH
I REERT Z(BBM B RELE
A1) RAKBERARBZER
ST HIR B R A RS AT R ATER
A o YRR (R A DR BR A %
FHRA MARER 2 ER (RAL
BN RRN S EFERR RS
st kAT @ ET AR ARRE) A Sl
B2 EMEFTBRESH 2 EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

As disclosed in note 23(b), the Group expects to incur
non-operating cash outflows of $137,917,000 within
one year, being repayment of bank loans of $63,380,000
and interest payable of $74,537,000. The Group will be
unable to meet these liabilities in full when they fall due
unless it is able to generate sufficient net cash inflows
from its operations and/or other sources, since as at
31 December 2014, the group only had cash and cash
equivalents of $46,032,000.

In this regard, the directors have identified various
initiatives to address the group’s liquidity needs, which
include:

e implementing various strategies to improve the
Group's storage, warehousing and transhipment
income to generate additional operating cash
inflows;

e putting extra efforts on the collection of trade
debtors to improve the debtors turnover days; and

e  actively and regularly reviewing its capital structure
and sourcing additional capital by issuing bonds or
new shares, where appropriate.

In addition, as disclosed in note 14(b], in March 2014
the Group received an arbitration award from the
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission which ordered
that a one-off payment of the net amount of the award
of approximately RMB589 million (equivalent to $749
million) be paid by the lessee to the Group. Should the
arbitration award be fully executed, the Group will have
additional cash inflow of approximately RMB589 million
(equivalent to $749 million).

EBRFERAT —T—EFFR

1

BEREHEEGE)
(b) MBHRZMRERE

BE_T-WF+-_A=1—H
I EEZGAVBRREBEAR
AINEMBARZERE -

R RER TR 2 FHEEE
IR SL PRANESE -

K FE23(D) T E - A%KETE
AR —FERELELERESR
H %8137,917,0007T » BIER 1T &
FRIE 3X63,380,000 7T K fE - F1| 2
74,537,0007C © BrIEARE[E LS
WEBEBRSREMPREE
FERBEMAFE - BRIELE
EIEE A - NEEEEEE
BOTEE EHZE-ZT—NF
+=—A=+—H XEEIAHR
& &IReFEIEE 46,032,0007T ©

St - EFERTEE T HREN
AEEWRBDESHE - B

e EMZERBUZAKHE
Wi E  EERBEERS
WA RELRBINEER

A7 o
SIPANE

s FHEXZBHKEESE
WBR TR - AL = KR E
Hwl R

o MEEmEEMRSEAEER
REERN MERITERX
S KEINEARIIR

IESN - aOBTEE14(D)HEEE - I =F
—HFE=A - AEEKREIEMNT
hEZEENHFIARE T2
AFABRAARNEE XS S
SRIRIEF R AR #589,000,000
(48 & 7 749,000,000 7T ) © fif
MR AZEZENT A&
EEBRIINRESRADARE
589,000,000 ( #8 & 7 749,000,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

1

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

As part of its going concern assessment, the Group
has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast and
concluded that material uncertainties exist regarding
the Group's ability to successfully implement the above
initiatives and therefore the achievability of the forecast.
In particular, the recovery of the arbitration award is
uncertain as the lessee has applied to the court to
revoke the arbitration award. As disclosed in note 14(b],
the court has accepted the lessee’s application, however
the outcome of the court case is still uncertain as the
court has not yet rendered a ruling on the lessee’s
application up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow
forecast mentioned above, the directors are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the Group's
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 on a going concern basis. Should the Group not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect
of these adjustments has not been reflected in these
financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

1

EXERBEE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

ERRFEERATR

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company:

- Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27, Investment entities

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as the Company
does not qualify to be an investment entity.

T MEFR

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7E31/R

SAEAERRIN)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the
Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with notes 1(U) or (o] depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses [see
note 1(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 1(s]).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 30 years
- Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
- Office equipment 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10years

Leasehold improvements Over the term

of the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(9)

ERRFEERATR

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 1(h)). Amortisation of club memberships is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, except that land held for own use under
an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7E31/R

SAEAERRIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

54

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1 SIGNIFIC

ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

ERRFEERATR

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets], where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

Ifin a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R M RE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAZEITHIR »

SAEAERRIN)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables [continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

- intangible assets;

= non-current prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bupr e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXREHBEE)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued) (h) BEERMEE)
(ii) Impairment of other assets [continued)] lii) HEEREGE)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable mEEAREFRERE -

A EEN K EEE -

amount is estimated.

ERRFEERATR

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable] or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1)

()

(k)

U]

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h]), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1 SIGNIFIC

ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

ERRFEERATR

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date after taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’'s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination)
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on undistributed profits
of investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

(o)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Other payables
Other payables (including amounts due to related
parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(@)

ERRFEERATR

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(i) Portincome is recognised upon performance of the
services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(iv)] Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the People's Republic of China ("PRC")
are Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi Yuan ("RMB")
respectively. The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars as
its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

ERRFEERATR

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing exchange rates at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use are complete.

T MEFR

1 EXREHBEE)
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(s)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties
(a) A person, oraclose member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) isa member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i]  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv] One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi] The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a](i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’'s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’'s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a)

(b)

ERRFEERATR

Going concern

As disclosed in note 1(b], the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis as they
are of the opinion that the Group has adequate sources
of liquidity to fund the Group's working capital and to
meet its debt obligations as they become due based on
the cash flow forecast prepared by the directors. Any
adverse result on the actual future cash flow would
affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. When indication
of impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cash flow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value in use and
provides for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss
and affect the Group’s financial position.

T MEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

2

68

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairments (continued)

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is assessed and provided based on the management’s
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect the Group’s profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during the reporting period. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimation.

Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration
of the arrangement are for less than a major part of
the facilities” useful lives and the present value of the
minimum payments under the arrangement does not
amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of
the facilities. The conclusion on classification of leases
may be affected if there are significant changes in
assumptions adopted in the estimates of the facilities’
useful lives and the present value of the minimum
payments. The Group uses all readily available
information in estimating the useful lives and present
value of minimum payments.

Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions during the
ordinary course of business for which calculations of the
ultimate tax provision is uncertain. The final outcomes
are subject to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may
exceed provisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bupr e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are provision of
terminal, storage, warehousing and transshipment
services for oil and petrochemical products.

Turnover represents port income and storage,
warehousing and transshipment income. The amount of
each significant category recognised in turnover during
the year is as follows:

3 BEERIBEE
(a) EXZF
REB 2 EEER BIREARA
BLERGE - 7 RERE
AR ©

BEBMBEBORARERF BB
EH WA - FAREXBNE
RZEEABERN ST

2014
—Z2-mF

$’000
T

frfr - BER
BHWA
B HWA

Storage, warehousing and
transshipment income
Port income

In 2014, the Group has one customer (2013: Nil] with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenues. In 2014, revenue from provision of storage
and transshipment services to this customer, including
revenues from entities which are known to the Group to
be under common control with this customer, amounted
to approximately $24 million. Details of concentrations
of credit risk arising from the Group’'s major customers
are set out in note 23(a).

EBRRARAT —TEER

214,812
5,609

206,686
4,820

211,506 220,421

RZZE—NE  A5EEF &
F(Z2—=%F : &) HEAXEH
ETZRZHBAEREBBRAZ
10% e RZZE——F  (ZEBE
FIREITF ke RA 52U
A BIEAEEENSZZARF
HREEH 2 BT ZWABL
2408w - AASEXTERF
EEEERBEFR ZFE - #R
Ff5E23(a) °
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BA RS R AR BTRE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

3

70

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment, the Group has identified the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i)

Xiao Hu Island Terminal ["XHIT"): this segment
represents the Group's provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing and transshipment activities
carried out in Panyu, the PRC.

Dongzhou International Terminal ("DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group's provision of
terminal, storage and transshipment activities
carried out in Dongguan, the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
investments in subsidiaries and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include other payables
and accruals attributable to the individual segments
and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

3

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit/
(loss] is “profit/[loss) before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/

i.e.
(loss) before taxation”, the Group's earnings/
(losses] are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation,
management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income and finance
costs.

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments provided to the Group’'s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 is set out below.

3

EEBERDBREE)
(b) 2EW}/EHE)
il 2PEE EEREEHE)
BE ¥Ry EDis F, (&518) PR
Bz R ERIBRTAIRF,
(E58) ] - BNl REFFLIEA

ZIERBRN,(BE)] -
RERIBBAER, (8
B AEBZBA (B
T@?ﬁﬁiﬁ#—?iﬁ%flﬁuﬁ
2 BB (WmAEE sk~ F1T

/L:l:l

AR AS) YEH I EE -

BRES ﬁEWMWmﬂ/
(BB 2D BERIN
i%féﬁ?%hf#&*ﬁﬁ%%)\

A BEWA R FBERAZ D
HER o

HE_T-MOFR-
¢+_ﬂ:+—5¢¢E
BRRETARERSET
HEEABADBE RN
BDERRZ A KB A RS
DEEREHIINTX »

ERRRARIA

XHIT DZIT Total
MRBLE ®MALE EH
2013 2014
—T-F “F-Qf
$'000 $'000
T T
Reportable segment ER TN
revenue 104,094 104,355 107,412 116,066 211,506 220,621
Reportable segment ﬁjiﬁ%’ﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ
profit/lloss) before &7,/ (&
taxation 2,980 (5,075)  (86,734) (79,087  (83,754) (84,162
Interest income MEBMA 146 580 91 89 237 669
Finance costs BHRLR 13,592 14,580 65,550 66,185 19,142 80,765
Reportable segment  F[HENHEE
assets 1,475,931 1493290 1,245,754 1315249 2,721,685 2,808,539
Reportable segment ~ ATREDHARE
liabilities 1,355,950 1,395,808 1,057,807 1,039,253 2,413,757 2,435,061
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAEREERSN)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 EEBAL SR E(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEFRE(Z)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (ii) ATHREIIFWA ~ B& -

BEERABZHE

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2014
—s-mE

$’000
Tt

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BEERaRi N 211,506 220,421
Consolidated turnover GREEER 211,506 220,421
Loss EE
Reportable segment loss before  AJ 45 75 ZRBR TR

taxation BIET18 (83,754) (84,162)
Unallocated other net income AOBE A F S 75 307
Unallocated head office and ROBLARE K

corporate expenses RNRIZH (31,812) (31,589
Consolidated loss before taxation F&BRTIRTEE (115,491) (115,444)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A EREDEVEE 2,721,685 2,808,539
Elimination of inter-segment R EBE 2

receivables FEU T8 (1,031,709) (1,017,897

1,689,976 1,790,642

Unallocated head office and KoBLBE &

corporate assets NABE 20,355 40,906
Consolidated total assets FAMEEE 1,710,331 1,831,548
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AT$RED LBE & 2,413,757 2,435,061
Elimination of inter-segment pakic aR=iliwd

payables FERTFRIA (1,031,709) (1,017,897)

1,382,048 1,417,164

Unallocated head office and KO 4EER K

corporate liabilities nEafE 125,504 94,667
Consolidated total liabilities FEmas 1,507,552 1,511,831
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 EERAR D IRE(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE(E)
(iii) Geographic information (i) #EEHR
The following table sets out information about the TRES A R E()
geographical location of (i] the Group's revenue REBUINLELEZ
from external customers and [ii] the Group's fixed WARINAER 2 EE
assets, intangible assets, non-current prepayments BE EBREEE - FERD
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical FENFIE(IEEHEREE
location of customers is based on the location at ElFEREZER - &
which the services were provided. The geographical FRrE R AR RIS 2
location of the specified non-current assets is 2 A IE o 15 IER B
based on the physical location of the asset. BEMEMEBENEECZE
PR PRE S Bh R KR o
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
IBEFFRBZEA EEFERBEE
2014 2014
it 2 —2-ImF
$'000 $°000
T T
Hong Kong BB - - 3,606 4,318
PRC (excluding FE (IR
Hong Kong) BE) 211,506 220,421 1,555,775 1,682,955
211,506 220,421 1,559,381 1,687,273
4 OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSS) 4 Hftsas /(F5R)FHE
2014
—ZE—MEF
$°000
T
Interest income FBHA 368 672
Government grants AT ED 1,177 1,033
Loss on disposal of property, plant  H&E¥E « HEM
and equipment HiBHEE (104) (1,576)
Net foreign exchange loss bE H B FRR (21) (1,386)
Others Hi 2,007 992
3,427 (265)
ERRFERAT —T-NEER 73




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAEREERSN)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 REAIES
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELATES 1 T &S HBR N5 B0 1% E
2
2014
—E-mEF
$°'000
T
(a) Finance costs (a) BrEELAs
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 79,165 80,855
(b) Staff costs* (b) BIRA*
Contributions to defined M) RE HERGRIRETE)
contribution retirement plans {EH 2 K 2,455 2,606
Salaries, wages and ¥R ITER
other benefits E b t& ) 57,577 54,891
60,032 57,497
(c) Otheritems (c) HArEH
Amortisation By
- land lease premium —t+iHE 7,114 7.646
- intangible assets —BVEE 204 203
Depreciation e 119,695 123,737
Auditor’'s remuneration (2 S CIER
- audit services — AR 1,358 1,358
- review services —EBR 380 380
Operating lease charges MENKEHE
on properties* A * 4,396 7,796
*  Staff costs include $1,800,000 (2013: $1,800,000) relating * BINABREMENKEEE

#F1,800,000(ZT—=4 :
1,800,0007T) » & RIA AT AR
AR TR & B4R

to operating lease charges on properties, which amount
is also included in the respective total amount disclosed
separately above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 HFEBEmRPZIMEHR
STATEMENT
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a) MEBBRRPZABHRIE
represents:
2014
—E—F
$'000
T
Current tax - PRC Enterprise BNEATRIE — FF A 2 P Y
Income Tax for the year (note 18(a))  EATSFL(FizE18(a)) 463 -
Deferred tax - origination and PEIERITE — R
reversal of temporary ZREVEER
differences (note 18(b)) o4 (fEE18(b)) (588) (584)
(125) (584)
Notes: Bt e -
(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended i) BEZZ—NF+=-A=+—
31 December 2014 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong HIEFE - tBHEFEHm
Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2013: Nil). T HRAEERERNELE
18 - BEkI S E RGBT
REB(ZZ—=F:®)-
(il  The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the i) BEZZT—NF+=-—A=+—
year ended 31 December 2014 was 25% (2013: 25%). HIEEE - AEMERE 2@
ABEABU(ZT—=F:
25%) °
3 == &
(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b) ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ#%iﬁlﬁiﬁ%ﬁi =
SHE R Z HARI T ¢

loss at applicable tax rates:

2014
—E—F
$°000
Fx
Loss before taxation BRELATEE (115,491) (115,444)
Notional tax on loss before tax, LEAN BB XS
calculated at the rates applicable  #E#[Rm 2 B K& AT
in the tax jurisdictions concerned BB E 2 2ETIE (26,039) (26,333)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N A # IS 2 T #5722 1,753 1,287
Tax effect of non-taxable income IR RIS E (21) (50)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not  RFER Z AF AFERIE
recognised 2GR E 24,288 24,480
Others Ei (106) 32
Actual tax credit ERTIBHR S (125) (584)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAEREERSN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 ES#HE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of BIEFCEB R TEEIY(F 6225 ) K
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance TN ET8IEW 2 E ECH B R REH)
(Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor (BRE)F1VEER2EZBH SN
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32}, is as follows: g
2014 —=_pE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’” and benefits scheme
fee in kind contributions
i ERER EREHE
E=He Bz e
$°000 $°000 $°000
T T T
Executive directors HiTES
David An HE - 4,912 60 4,972
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEH - 975 17 992
Liu Zhijun 2EE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei IR - 1,209 17 1,226

Independent non-executive J§M FE#1T

directors B=
Li Wai Keung EXEL: 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIRIE 120 - - 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose =/ )\ 120 - - 120

360 8,071 154 8,585
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 EEME(E)
2013 —E—=F

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors”  and benefits scheme

fee inkind  contributions

5 - O=RE R RRGTE

EE ik B N

$'000 $'000 $'000

T T T

Executive directors BITES

David An CU s - 4,790 60 4,850
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEY - 975 15 990
Liu Zhijun 2EE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 15 1,224

Independent non-executive &3 JE#{T

directors S
Li Wai Keung FR% 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony RiR(E 120 - - 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose ERN
(note [i)) Gl 70 - - 70
Liu Jian [note (i)} B4 (P &ELi)) 50 - - 50
360 7,949 150 8,459
Notes: BiteE
(i) Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose was appointed as an independent N ENHBEAAEEBE-_FT—=F1A
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 31 May =S+ —HRREZRER/RRRRIE LI
2013. WITESE -
[i) ~ Mr. Liu Jian resigned as an independent non-executive director il BEEEE-ZEZ—=FRA=1+—
of the Company with effect from 31 May 2013. HEFHEARARRIBY NI TES -
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no HE_Z-—MER-_T—=F+_A
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the directors =t+—HIFEHRE  ARARHER
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8 NEYANE =W E s =
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EEEHMATHEMALTHE - AR
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement SR EMBAREESNIARR TS K
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any TERBERRAE - £ BIEITULH
remuneration during the years. NHESEHEXRERETAHNE -
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10

78

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 EmFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the RAEBREHESHMALHR - Ef
Group, four (2013: four) are directors of the Company whose WE(ZE—=%F : @&) ALTAEAR
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in AIEE - HMESRMIE7HEE - 881
respect of the remaining individual is as follow: —BALTHMEIT
2014
—Z—F
$°'000
T
Salaries and other benefits HN & E b AE R 768 773
Contributions to defined contribution  FEEEMHFGEAETE
retirement plans 2R 33 26
801 799
The emolument of the remaining individual with the highest ZEERETA LT ZBE N TN
emoluments is within the following band: TEE :

Number of individuals

Nil - $1,000,000 Z - 1,000,000t 1 1

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 9 ZAAFWRREMLEE
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of ARRRREGZFEBEEEBE
the Company includes a loss of $4,103,000 (2013: $3,950,000) 4,103,000 (=& — =4 : 3,950,000
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the 7T) - HERARRMBFHRERARER -
Company.

LOSS PER SHARE 10 BRERE

Basic and diluted loss per share SRERREEEER

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based BREREFERIIREFALR
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of A2 &I R e 15 518 108,814,000
the Company of $108,814,000 (2013: $108,061,000) and the JTL(=ZZF—=4 : 108,061,00070) X E
weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2013: BT E B AR NNHE T ¥ #43,732,638,000
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. Mg AR (—Z—=4F : 3,732,638,000

B BB E -

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per HREBEE-_T-—MOFR-_ZT—=F
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares TZA=+—BIEFERTEEAA
in existence during the years ended 31 December 2014 and BSIERcBELBR  MEKRES
2013. BRASREAREERAR -
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B RS SR MR

SAZEAERIN)

11

ERRFEERATR

FIXED ASSETS
(a) The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2014
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated
depreciation and
amortisation:

At 1 January 2014

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Written back on
disposals

At 31 December 2014

A
RZE-mE-A-A
B

HE

hif3

RZE-ME+ZA
=+-A

ZHITERES.
RZF-ME-A-A
ErHE

ERAE
RMHERRE

RZE-ME+-A

=t+-H
Net book value: BEFE:
M3 December 016 R-E-ME+-A
=+-8
—T—FEFR

Buildings

Dock and
storage
facilities

WL
BRI
$/000
T

Office
equipment

11 EEEE
(a) =5H

Motor Leasehold

vehicles improvements

BENREE
$'000
T

Sub-total

Interests in
land held
for own use
under
operating
leases

it
feng
KEERZ
1iER
$000

i

(note ik b)

Total
fixed assets

B
BEARE
$'000
T

55210 1,946,284 7,157 21,230 1892 2,031,833 326276 2,358,109
(189) (6,619) (22) (70) - (6,900) (1,116) (8,016)
- 10,178 81 21 - 10,580 - 10,580

- (106) (8) (980) - (1,096) - (1,096)
55,081 1,949,737 7,208 20,501 1892 2,034,419 35160 2,359,579
12,032 415,681 427 15,699 19 847,648 177 692,825
(33) [1,619) (10 (44) - (1,708) (124) (1,830
1,810 114,658 457 2,254 316 119,495 AT 126,809
- (96) (n (882) - (985) - (985)
13,809 728,626 4857 17,027 335 764,652 52,167 816,819
am e 1113 2,351 3474 1557 1,269,767 2,993 1,542,760
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11 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 11 EEEEE)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) A&EE(#&)

Interests in

and held

for own use

Dock and under
storage Office Leasehold operating Total

Buildings facilities ~ equipment improvements 8 leases  fived assets

15
$000

Cost: 7
At 1 January 2013 R-5-Z5-f-H 53,593 1896936 6,727 20,63 149 1,978,040 316,377 2,294,417
Exchange adjustments  [E 5% 1677 59,240 190 59 - 61,702 9,899 71,601
Additions HE - 819 693 - 1899 340 - 34N
Disposals e - (10.711) (453) - (156) (17,320] - (11,320)
At 31 December 2013 R-F-=F+-H
=t+-A 55,270 1946,284 7,157 1230 1892 2,031,833 326,276 2,398,109

Accumulated ZFEREH:

depreciation and

amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 W-5-=F-F-H 9,949 488,292 3,137 12,740 149 514,867 36,273 551,140
Exchange adjustments B3 5% 39 17,049 104 399 - 17891 1,28 19,149
Charge for theyear ~ FEHE 1744 118,589 818 2560 2 123,737 7,646 131,383
Written back on M ERED

disposals - (8,249) [442) - (156) (8,847) - (8,847)

M3 December 2013 M=F-=F+-f
=t-H 12,032 615,681 &N7 15,699 19 647 648 BT 692825

Net hook value: BREFE
At31 December 2013  R-Z-=F+-A

=t-f 43238 1,330,603 2940 5531 1873 1,384,185 21,099 1,665,284
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) AEEEAHBHBMFHEBER T
PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net EFAME - HEHRLF - RZF
book value as at 31 December 2014 includes an amount —UFEF+—A=+—HZREF
of $7,145,000 (2013: $7,823,000) which is disclosed as ERNEIES57,145,000L(=F
interest in land held for own use under operating leases — =% :7,823,00070) ' ERR
under current assets. FEEP 2 RBLERERFRER
Rz THbiEs R 5R -
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11 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 11 BEEEGE)
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follow: (c) WEREmFEZOTWOT :
The Group
rEH
2014
—B-mEF
In PRC: RIAHE
Medium-term leases fhERFR 49 314,265 324,337
Representing: B]E
Buildings BF 41,272 43,238
Interest in land held for own use RELCEHERIEERZ
under operating leases TR 272,993 281,099
314,265 324,337
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEEE
The Group
rEE
Club membership
=3
2014
—E—NF
$'000

Cost: A :

At 1 January w—HA—H 3,829 3,813

Exchange adjustments M 5,8 B (1) 16

At 31 December W+ZA=+—8H 3,828 3,829

Accumulated amortisation: E5g: o

At 1 January w—H—H 1,416 1,207

Exchange adjustments M H % - 6

Charge for the year FEHFE 206 203

At 31 December Wt+ZRA=+—H 1,620 1,416

Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 2,208 2,413
The amortisation charge for the year is included in REEZHBHERAAAGESRER
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income [fTEEMAIF -
statement.
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13 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RHEQTZER

The Company
RAF]
2014
—E—MEF

$’000
T

Unlisted shares/capital contributions, 3E_Ff%fy B ARIKE -

at cost R 1,051,500 1,051,500
Less: impairment loss B R EEE (496,245) (496,245
555,255 555,255
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — R A B 5RIE 14,040 18,427
569,295 573,682
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free R —RWBARFIEAEER &
and is not expected to be recovered within twelve months BEEHIAERBEE AL+ &
from the balance sheet date. ANEE -
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries ITHREBEFEREBHELS -
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of BEESIBBENEENBATMNFE -
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless BRIESAEHA - BRIFTFE: 2 AR D 2B
otherwise indicated. AEBRY o
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13 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2014 are as follows:

13 AHNBARZERE)
AR —_ZE—WNF+—-_A=+—H
ZEBHBRARZEFBLT

Place of Particulars of
Place of incorporation/ issued and
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital
BihYe BEGE
WEARER By L2 b5 RAFE
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares
Company Limited BB BB 20,000,0008%
BERRMIEIERAR
Oriental Point International Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares
REERERAR BB Bk 1,000,000
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares
BRERERAT Bl i 10,0008
Union Petro - Chemicals (BVI) Hong Kong British Virgin 100 shares of
Company Limited &% Islands US$1 each
ERBEDRTARAR RRRLES 1008
BREEIET
Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical ~ PRC PRC RMB220,000,000
Storage & Transportation Ltd. i e AR 220,000,000
(6D (Panyu)”)
ER(ER)AMIFERR
BRAR ([E8(FE))
BMR R IRRARAR PRC PRC RMBA,820,800
(8aL)) P E ARH,820,800
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical
Development Limited
REMRMERDLRRERAT  PRC PRC RMB374,110,000
(TEMERR ) R hE ARH374,110,000

Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited

Note:

GD (Panyu] is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company

Attributable
equity interest

FEfE IR

Directly Indirectly

EE 3
- 100%

- 100%

100% -

100% -

- 92%

- 92%

- 92%

Rt

Principal activities

TERHR

Provision of administrative
services

RATHIR

Inactive

EEXE

Provision of administrative
services

RATHIIR

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing
and transshipment
services

REBE  BF - BER
BaRS

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of terminal,
storage and
transshipment services

RAESE - BER
BRRY

BB(HEB)E—KTIHEGER

and AL and SMBEIFR are limited liability companies.
The official names of &A1k and HMEIEE are in Chinese
and the English translation are for reference only.

BEEBERERLATE —T—HEFH

f - FRALEREMEERESS
BREERT - PRAEREM
Bl 2 EX B AP X - HXH
EEHSE -
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13 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13
The following table lists out the information relating to GD
(Panyu), the only subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest ("NCI”]). The summarised financial

R R B2 Es(E)

TR AKEME—FHEEARIFER
e ([ Rl s DB AR -8
B(EBINER - T2 ZHH

information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

BRI ER N RFELHEAM 2R ©

NCI percentage 1R i ER EE 5] 8% 8%
Non-current assets BN EE 1,557,624 1,684,673
Current assets TENEE 181,695 173,666
Current liabilities mERE (114,192) (74,561)
Non-current liabilities JERBRIE (1,278,324) (1,353,260)
Net assets BETAE 346,803 430,518
Carrying amount of NCI JEIRRRAE RS AR (B 27,744 34,441
Revenue Wz 210,332 218,917
Loss for the year FNEE (81,895) (84,992)
Total comprehensive income TH LR (82,242) (86,362)
Loss allocated to NCI ST IR 2 1R (6,552) (6,799)
Net cash generated from operating EEEBMERE 8

activities 124,714 107,417
Net cash used in investing activities & EBNFTAIREIFEE (5,030) (11,745)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ REE EENTAIR €55 (110,744) (141,064)
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EZREMEWRE
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2014 2014
—E-mE 2 —E-NE
$°000 $'000
T T
Trade debtors 2 SR 172,778 153,627 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful & : REREE
debts (note 14(b)) (FfFEE14(b)) (121,704) (122,122) - -
51,074 31,505 - -
Prepayments and other FERTRIE KA A
receivables JEU A 11,606 11,912 356 356
Amount due from BN —RME
a subsidiary NCIE = - 4,104 3,949
62,680 43,417 4,460 4,305
The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s prepayments AR EARREHN —FREE K
and other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised HRAE M2 AMNFIE RE M EK
as expense after more than one year is $920,000 (2013: FIRD B A3920,000T(ZF—=%F:
$920,000) and $Nil (2013: $Nil) respectively. Apart from these, 920,0007T) RETL(ZF—=F: &F
the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be 7o) © BRibZ 9N - BN FRIA R E A
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. WRIRTR A N —F MU @ Sk iR A
R -
(a) Ageing analysis (a) RO
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of REER - REFRAHKREN
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other BRRIZRB B2 E 5 B WA
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of (FtAE 5 R H M EUGKIE) 2 Bk
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: BT

2014
—E2-mF

$°000
Tt

Within 1 month (ERZIA 23,240 23,787
Over 1 month but within 2 months & A LA HEREA A 2,636 2,213
Over 2 months but within 3 months  M{EABLA L E=EARN 2,300 5,505
Over 3 months ={EAAUE 22,898 -

51,074 31,505

>
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

86

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis (continued)

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available
to major customers with well-established trading
records. The Group allows an average credit period of
30 days to its trade customers. Further details on the
Company's credit policy are set out in note 23(a).

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors directly (see note 1(h](i)).

A PRC subsidiary of the Company and SINOPEC
Guangdong Qil Products Company (the “Lessee”]
entered into an oil storage tanks lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) in 2004. During the year ended 31
December 2011, a request was made by the Lessee for
its unilateral termination of the Lease Agreement since
1 July 2011 because of changes in the Lessee’s business
operating conditions.

In this connection, the Group has ceased to recognise
revenue from the Lease Agreement since 1 July 2011.
Further, there is accrued rental income receivable
arising from initial rent free period of the Lease
Agreement (included within trade receivables] of
RMB90,795,000 (equivalent to $115,091,000]. As it is
uncertain that the Lease Agreement will continue to be
executed for the remaining lease term, full impairment
loss was recognised on the accrued rental income
receivable during the year ended 31 December 2011.
Apart from the accrued rental income receivable, the
Group did not have other outstanding receivables due
from the Lessee at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

14 BEREMEWKEGE)

(a)

(b)

ARl 47 (42)

B ARERME - BRI —&
ERTARFRIREHITIER
F - AREHKTE S TP FH30
RZBHRY - BEARAERER
RE—TFBENHI23(a)

B 5 BWARR ZRE

BB RUSRR R ERBIARE
BRACER - MEMASEREEAR
HZWEMERIE - MEREES
FEMRR P A sE (R BTRE (h)() »

ARAH—ZFK B E A F HE
RAEEERAGHD RE(ATHE
WIAEANDR-_ZSTNERE
ThRhFEEERE(THER
&) BE-_T——Ft+_-A
=+ HLEFE  ABRAREL
EERBCMETEERN_-F
——H5tA-BEKLHEER

o
¢
K ©

M AEEBBHE -_ZT——F+
A—BREFEILREEHEER
WA - SB5 - BERBEW =
2B HEmEENTEIRE
WHeBA(BEEE SRR
KA) AR#90,795,000 (FHE R
115,091,000z ) ° AT HEE
EHmEe R ERGHEBESEY
17 BB ERAERAS KA
REBEZT——F+=_A=+—
HItFE 2SR ERERE -
RIEBE—=FN_ZT—NFE+=
A=1+—8 B EiRFk 2 ER
FEWAR S WASN » REEI FEH
fh AR FE WA FR A 2 508 -
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors (continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

At 1 January m—H—H
Exchange adjustment M 5, B

At 31 December

At 31 December 2014, the Group's trade debtors of
$121,704,000 (2013: $122,122,000) were individually
determined to be impaired, of which $6,613,000
(2013: $6,636,000) related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that
the receivables were not expected to be recovered.
In addition, specific allowance for doubtful debts of
$115,091,000 (2013: $115,486,000) was recognised as at
31 December 2014 in respect of accrued rental income
receivable in relation to the Lease Agreement, which the
Lessee requested to terminate since 1 July 2011.

On 11 June 2012, the Group has applied for an
arbitration to the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission
(the “Arbitration Commission”] in accordance with the
specific terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement
in respect of the unilateral termination of the Lease
Agreement by the Lessee.

EBRRARAT —TEER

R+-A=+—H

B Z REMEWFRIEGE)

(b) BFEWERRZEEGE)
FARBRBEHBZEHUT :
The Group
AEE

2014
—=-—mE
$'000
Fx
122,122 118,417
(418) 3,705
121,704 122,122

RZE—NE+=—A=+—8 -
AEBENBEEREZZE S
JE UL BR 2% A 121,704,000 7T ( —
T — =4 : 122,122,000 7T )
EHr6,613000c(=ZE—=4F
6,636,0007T ) 2 FE Y FRIA B A B
BRESgzZFER - BEENG
ZERWFIRTER T REWE © 5
SN RZE—NF+A=+—
Bt EHmEEENTERER
e AR TEREREB
115,091,000t (=& — =
115,486,00070) %A A B3R
R=_ZT——F LA —HERILE
RS -

R-ZZE——FX A+—H A&
AR R A B 15 o8 2 15 TE MR R e M6k
HrREMmHHEZES(FHRE
Be ) ABAETEERRK L
ME MR FPE -

87



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BT ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAFETTHIR © BAEHERIN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors (continued)

14 BEREMEWKEGE)
(b) BZEWRRFZREE)

On 5 March 2014, the Group received an arbitration
award (the “Arbitration Award”) from the Arbitration
Commission, details of which are as follows:

- the Lease Agreement and a supplemental
agreement to the Lease Agreement entered into
between the Group and the Lessee be terminated;

- the Lessee shall pay the Group a default payment
of RMB607,320,000 (equivalent to $772,475,000);

- the Group shall refund to the Lessee the rental of
oil storage tanks of RMB21,786,000 (equivalent to
$27,711,000);

- the other claims made by the Group be rejected;

- the other counterclaims made by the Lessee be
rejected; and

- the arbitration fee for the claims made by the
Group amounted to RMB4,982,000 (equivalent to
$6,336,000), which shall be borne by the Group
as to RMB996,000 (equivalent to $1,267,000) and
by the Lessee as to RMB3,986,000 (equivalent
to $5,069,000). The arbitration fee for the
counterclaims made by the Lessee amounted to
RMB?9,559,000 (equivalent to $12,159,000), which
shall be borne by the Group as to RMB956,000
(equivalent to $1,216,000) and by the Lessee as to
RMB8,603,000 (equivalent to $10,943,000).

The Arbitration Commission ordered that a one-off
payment of the net amount of the above awards (being
the gross amount payable by the Lessee to the Group
off-setting the gross amount payable by the Group
to the Lessee pursuant to the Arbitration Award) of
RMB589,000,000 (equivalent to $749,000,000) be paid by
the Lessee to the Group within ten days from the date of
the Arbitration Award being served, and the Arbitration
Award shall have legal effect from the date when the
Arbitration Award was made.

RZE—WFE=AFH A5E
EEREMBEZEGEL 2ME
FORE([MHEBORE ) - R4
T~

— RRASEEARE AR
B T &t ) Mt e
HEMTT )

— ABEARAEELNEYD
£ AR#607,320,000(48E
M772,475,0007T)

— AREEMAHEANREFER
& AN R#21,786,000( &
#27,711,0007T)

—  HARENEMHRER
TP

- HABEANEMHERRE
RATXHF R

- ARMHREBESEAARE
4,982,000 (48 & 726,336,000
TL) C RS EFREARK
996,000 ( #8 & 2 1,267,000
gT) c ERAAREARE
3,986,000 (48 & 745,069,000
TT) > Ris KM ELEA
A R #9559 000 (4 & ©
12,159,0007T) ' AAEE
EIE A R ¥ 956,000 (HE
1,216,0007T) + 7 FE A
AR 8,603,000 HHE R
10,943,0007T) °

HREEERS  LHEHRTE
MEENE  &ABEABEFER
HAZXEZARTEAR - —K
MEmANE B E R FRIB
SHEE A R 589,000,000 (A8 E R
749,000,0007T) ° HEEFER
hEEAERBEE ARRAR AR
WA o
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors (continued)

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the above payment has not yet been received from the
Lessee. In this connection, the Group filed an application
to the Intermediate People’s Court of Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province (the “Court”) for enforcement of
the Arbitration Award by the Lessee on 19 March 2014
and received a notice of acceptance of lawsuit dated 24
March 2014 from the Court.

On 17 April 2014, the Group received a notice of
responses to legal proceedings (the “Notice”) from the
Court. According to the Notice, the Court has accepted
the application made by the Lessee for revoking the
arbitration ruling made by the Arbitration Commission
dated 5 March 2014 (the “Lessee’s Application”).

There were two court hearings held on 20 May 2014 and
4 September 2014 respectively. On 21 November 2014,
the Group filed a submission to the Court requesting the
Court to grant a ruling on the Lessee’s Application. The
latest court hearing was held on 12 December 2014 and
the Court has not yet rendered a ruling on the Lessee’s
Application up to the date of approval of these financial
statements.

14

B2 RHEMBWRIERGE)
(b) BZEYIRRZBEE)

(©)

HEAMBHRER  KEBEK
P& AR URER Eat 5R08 - )
I AEER =T —WF=A
THAEREREBMNTHRREAR
EBT ([VERT 1) R 7558 hil A A R
TR RERNNER - WUE
FERR -Z—WE=A -+mMA
BHZHITRGTRBNE -

RZZE-HFMA+LEH A%
BEEEREL CEFBAE
(MBAE]) - RBAE - A
EXEABEARBHEFREZE
ER_F-OF=ARABELDN
HFEER(TEBARE]D -

MREAD IR T —HFEHHA
“tRERZZE-OFAANBER
T-R-B—MFE+—H_+—
A AEERERRHE - &
SRR AT AR B EHBOR o
BAER RN —E—MF+—
A+TZBRT MBEAMBR
=B AR HAREEBEARGIE
HECR ©

RMIE > Y 5 508
A ERI A AR A2 E 5
RN B3R B M R 4 B 547
W

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired 37 f480 HR ot (B
Less than 1 month past due BEAATE A
1to 2 months past due #ER 1 221 A
Over 2 months past due i ERER A 2 1E A

EBRRARAT —TEER

The Group
A EE

2014

—E-lmF

$’000
23,240 23,787
2,636 2,213
2,300 5,505
22,898 -
27,834 7,718
51,074 31,505
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 EFRHAMEBRKIEAGE)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued) (c) REEBEZEWEZHREE)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired 37 % 580 HR T AR R (B 2 FE UK BR R TS
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was BN 3 BRIE K08k 2 N RIEREY
no recent history of default. BFEBH -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B HE N SR E 2 YRR TD
to a number of independent customers that have good EAREEZZHA RIfitk 2 18
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, NRFEER - BERATLR B
management believes that no impairment allowance BEREHAMZEEREL R
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has BERE RAAGEERTES
not been a significant change in credit quality and these KEE) » Mz FERTIEE AR
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group FEUWE o AREE I mph L E A
does not hold any collateral over these balances. BIFAEAERD o
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 BERFEESEEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BeRREESEBFERHEE
The Group The Company
i 3| AT
2014 2014
—E-NF —E-NE
$°000 $°000
T Fr
Time deposits TE BT 8,085 - - -
Other cashand cash ~ EMRE&RES
equivalents Z£{HI1EHE 37,947 56,993 169 28
46,032 56,993 169 28
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 15 BeRBELEEER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BREAIEEEKSEXKMEES
generated from operations: ZHEE :

2014
—E-mEF
$°000
Tt
Loss before taxation BRI RIE TR (115,491) (115,444)
Adjustments for: HATBIAELTE -
Interest income FLEWA 4 (368) (672)
Finance costs B TSR AR 5(a) 79,165 80,855
Depreciation e 5(c) 119,695 123,737
Amortisation of land lease  + bl & & #84 5(c]
premium 7,114 7,646
Amortisation of intangible &/ & E# 5(c)
assets 204 203
Loss on disposal of HEWE - BER 4
property, plant and Xt R
equipment 104 1,576
Exchange differences [ 5 =50 32 1,605
Changes in working capital: ~ &E&E$ 7 &E)
Decrease in consumable  SHESR
parts 358 1,742
Increase in trade and other &5 N Eth B U FRIA
receivables bzl (18,182) (5,542)
Increase/(decrease) in Hib T FIE N
other payables and FHRERIEIS
accruals CR) 3,182 (966)
Cash generated from REEXBMERE
operations 75,813 94,740
EERRRERAT —T-WMEFH 21
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16 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 16 HMENRERIRER
The Group The Company
AEE KD F

2014 2014
—E-F = —E-NF

$°000 $’000
T Fr

Other payables and accruals EAtETZIBR

HRER 51,372 53,372 2,114 2,102
Deferred revenue EREMA 7,810 2,093 - -
59,182 55,465 2,114 2,102
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, all of the other payables and RZB-—NFR_T—=F+"H
accruals are expected to be settled or recognised as income =+—HB ' FAHEMENIEKR
within one year. BREHR-—FAEEIBRANK
A o
17 BANK LOANS 17 SRITER
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is (a) SBITEFRAENDFWMT :
as follows:
The Group
REE
2014
—E—mF
$°000
Ft
Current liabilities REBEE
Short-term bank loans HHIERITE R 63,380 27,839
Long-term bank loans repayable JEERER 2 REA
on demand RITER = 600
63,380 28,439
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Long-term bank loans RHISRITER 1,143,366 1,210,887
1,206,746 1,239,326
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17 BANK LOANS (continued)
(b) At 31 December 2014, according to the original
repayment schedule, the bank loans were
repayable as follows:

17

Within 1 year or on demand

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFA
After 5 years hF%

(c) At 31 December 2014, the bank loans were
secured as follows:

R — Rk e B SRES

BRITER(E)

(b) R=Z—NF+=-A=+—1"
RBRRMEBNRTE - RITEX
BERT5IEEEE :

The Group
AEE
2014
—E-mF
$°000
. £ 27,839
63,380 64,197
266,194 198,423
813,792 948,867
o hiassee 1,211,487 |
1,206,746 1,239,326

(©)

R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H "
RITERZEFEROT :

The Group
rEE

2014
—E-DIF

$’000

Bank loans RITER
- secured - HiEH
- unsecured o Tiiwii

(d) At 31 December 2014, the Group had banking facilities
totalling $1,206,746,000 (2013: $1,639,987,000), of
which $1,206,746,000 (2013: $1,636,987,000) were
secured by certain of the Group's fixed assets with net
book value of $1,280,643,000 as at 31 December 2014
(2013: $1,393,779,000) and certain of the Group's future
operating lease receivables. The banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of $1,206,746,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: $1,236,326,000).

EBRRARAT —TEER

T

1,206,746 1,236,326
- 3,000

1,206,746 1,239,326

(d)

RZE—NWFE+ A =+—
H AEEZHRITHEREES
#£1,206,746,000 T ( =& — =
0 1,639,987,000 T ) © EH
1,206,746,0007C( =& — =4 :
1,636,987,0007T) Ty AR S B &
FR=ZZFE—NFE+=_A=+—
A 2 BR M %18 A& 1,280,643,000
JT(=ZF— =4 : 1,393,779,000
T ZETEEE  URAEEE
TR AL & E U RIB (E IR
HopR=—TE—WF+-_A=1+—
H BEEBAZEITHEREES
1,206,746,000 T ( =T — =4 :
1,236,326,0007T) °
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17 BANK LOANS (continued) 17 SBTERGE)
(e) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's (e) REBE-_ZT—HWE+_A=+—
unsecured bank loan of $3,000,000 has been fully repaid. HIEFE - AEE 2 EERRT
{=E3,000,000C EBHERE -
18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 18 HEEBEEEBRTZFIEH
(a) Current tax recoverable in the consolidated (a) REEBEEBRPZTHEER
balance sheet represents: HiE :
The Group
rEH

PRC Enterprise
Income Tax recoverable

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The movements of the Group's deferred tax liabilities

during the year are as follows:

AT [E]
B EETST 18,630 19,161

(b) ERMELHEAM :
FRAREIEERAR #2728
ERmT :

Depreciation allowances in
excess of the
related depreciation

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January
Exchange adjustments
Credited to profit or loss [note 6(a))

At 31 December

94

BHEBITEZITERTIEE
2014
—E—MF
$°000
T
ELERIERE -
n—A—H 6,276 6,660
P H 58 EE (25) 200
AR K (M5Es(a)) (588) (584)
Rt+=-—A=+—H 5,663 6,276
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(c)

(d)

ERRFEERATR

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$572 million (2013: $469 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries will expire in 5 years after the relevant tax
losses were incurred while tax losses for the Group's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under the
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the
grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of a
foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are
exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $159,072,000 (2013: $155,215,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $7,954,000 (2013: $7,761,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that the profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

T MEFR

18

REBERBERTZAEHR(E)

(©)

(d)

RERZELERBEE :

RIEMFEN(n) TS 2 SRTECR -
MR A ERERRTAAERE
RIS Bl AR 75 FE ARt 1) A
EEEEEE  AEBXREH
B BEEELOSNETL(ZE
— = 469BIT) BERIETER
BHEE - NEERH BB AR
MRS ERGER B EERE
HEBSFRER - MBERITHR
IR - AREBEZBNHNBE A
RIS S IE R A o

AR ZIEEREAE !

BRI Wk DR D BN - SNE
TEINEBIMEEE ZREA
BAN0%TEID - ERZHBUA
REIT  INEEER_FTTLEF
TZA=t—RZRDEEMNE
R RBANTEIIR ©

RZE—NWFE+_A=+—
B BB R A2 KRR E
HEAsHEEREEE4KA
159,072,000t (=& — =
155,215,0007T) * RRARIARAB 5
ROREERSEFEmEN 2
TRIBMRIEEHTEA E7,954,000
JTL(ZZ—=% :7761,0007C) °
RARADNGTEFZEWNB AT
Z IR BHER - WHERRAETE
KA R R IR F)E o
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19

20

926

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and with no fixed terms of repayment.

The related parties have confirmed that they have no intention
to request repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and accordingly, the balances are shown as non-
current.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its staff to the retirement scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contribution under the
scheme. The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with this scheme
beyond the annual contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”] under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

19

20

FEAS BA B 5 R IE
FENRARE T 2 AR EER - RER
EEE RS

B ERANSEEERNEER
HEEF+ @A AER - Bt - ZFE
EBRIRRIERE ©

EERKEF
AEBETFEZHBARZEERT
BRI BERE B EREHNGT
BlZE - AKEBREBT 2%
B~ FEAL R TR R E B DR
LR RET BIHER o BLEZRRAR AT 8
MmE @ AREZHE—BERREZET
SEH TR 2K - R LB FHR
Hh - REBAEZBIRERES B/
B EE M EARNREE -

AEBENRREERRBGHER2E
B - REF RGBS B
REBRVELEE([REEF
gl]) - EEFE - HABUIIE
AEEZ REHRFRKETE - RIFR
BEEtE BEMERASBRES
BRAKAZ 5%t BIVEHHER A
B AAEREKAS0,0007T(ZF—EF R
A B14325,00070) BB © [[EFEIEHL 2

HHRAERETES
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21

ERRFEERATR

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are available to the Group and to provide the Company
with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to such persons who
contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme
remains in force for a period of 10 years from adoption and
expires on 27 December 2022.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any eligible participant
including any employee, director, consultant, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner of the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company,
or any supplier or provider of goods or services to the
Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be
determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe
for the shares of the Company.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Directors and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil) and no share option was
outstanding under the 2012 scheme as at 31 December 2014
(2013: Nill.

T MEFR

21

LEREE RO S

BERZE——F+_A=+/\HB
B2 LRAFER  AREERAN—IEE
BT EI([3%aT81)) - BUSAAR]
BUEERERES®ZEE - ]’
HAEBMEBEZER @ RAKAR]
RERBERZEEAEER F /AT
HRF a2 ATEL R - HE - W
B - (&K, SRR ET o ZaT A
Kg AR TFBE—Ea% - I

RIEZTE > ARRZEZTEABB
AERNEERSEE(BREARAH
RABEAHBARZEE - EF
B RIEA  ZBHEBKE - X5
BH - AELEBH  REEHIME
] AR RS A2 BEfRI B A B4
HEAERIMB 2 HEEE(KES
TRERE)) ZLBRE  UREAR
Bz

HE-_Z-—ME+-_A=+—HItF
B WEENESESREEASE
BT A REZAT S 2 BB E (=
T—=F E) AR _T—OFE+—
A=1T—HBREBE-T——F5&1
BEARTEZERE(ZE—ZF
=) o
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22 BEXRMEE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BRERIBD 2B E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEERE RS AR ER D B
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HHR R AR ET R B AR A i i
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BER o NRQ B Z(ERE AR
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the DIARF EEYE AR EEF
Company’s individual components of equity between the ISEFT o

beginning and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company KA FE]

Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses

LTS RAEE RiESE
$'000 $:000 $'000
T T Tr

Balance at 1 January 2013 RZ-Z-=£-F—H
iR 373,264 710,477 (533,878) 549,863

Changes in equity for 2013: —E—=FEX%EH .

Loss and total FRERR2ERS
comprehensive income o
for the year - - (3,950) (3,950)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=E—=%
and 1 January 2014 +=A=+-AK
—2-mF
—A—-Rz&e 373,264 710,477 (537,828) 545,913

Changes in equity for 2014: —B—MEEZEE
Loss and total comprehensive R & 2 mEUE

income for the year it - = (4,103) (4,103)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=Z—M&
+=-A=+-H
2R 373,264 710,477 (541,931) 541,810
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital

22 EBEXRRHEGE)
(b) KA

The Company
YN

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
i
$'000
T

EBRAAE
'000
TR

10,000,000 1,000,000

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SRERLITZERR

Authorised: JEE

At 31 December 2013 and 2014 R_E-—=FR_Z—NF
+ZA=+—-AH

Issued and fully paid: BETRHE -

At 31 December 2013 and 2014

+-A=1+-H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’'s residual assets.

(©)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ERRRARAR

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse
acquisition in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r).

—T-mErER

RIE-—=FR-T-IF

3,732,638 373,264

(©)

TRRFEABREBEITES
KBRS - TEERARG S

Z LR —RERE

R o PTE

ERRERNABRGEETER
R

EEER AR

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R 43518
B g EROERXHS
BERAA(ER]EE

RIS
FRIFEE ST MF
TTAMRBEMESE

RZ#E
REFBREBRETEIN
SN KIS SRR EE
BB INEZRE o HETD
RIBHEE ) ST EE
BRI -
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group's subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted as to use and
is not available for distribution.

(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

100

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprise share premium and
accumulated losses which in aggregate amounted
to approximately $169 million as at 31 December
2014 (2013: $173 million). Under the Companies Law
(Revised] of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
memorandum and articles of association and provided
that immediately following the payment of distribution
or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the
Company.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital comprises all components of equity,
plus net debt.

22 BEXKREE)

(c)

RETEERRR(E)

liv) SEERE
REBBINERELEDN
MEARESR  AEER
B & E Y B B A B B P
i M 8 8 B E R T
e BREZIEMEN G
NEBEBNBRARNES
EREERMDAUETE - #
BREXIRGATEA
TEDIR

(d) "THDIREE

(e)

KRR AR TR 2 REEE
BRBEERZFTEE  RZF
—=F+-_F=+—HAHL
16918 (ZE—=4F : 17318
T0) c IRIBEHAERS AFIA(EE
51) ' ARRIZ DR ER BE
DIRSAE AR BIRETRE -
Zo R MOREREAFE A RAE
BERAEERMAZHRE  mE
EEREDKMRER SR - AR
AMDEERN A B XS BIER(EES
HAETS - IRIBAR R Z A ETR
HHA - ANNDF] 2D IRBRE = F 3R

Hib i - BREARE B4
BRRPIZER ©
RAEE

AEEZERBRREEBRAA
REAEE B EEZRE
PAE ELREFS B R AR IR (M 3R 1%
[ A AR R A THR A - iR
RREZERNRBAREERK
o

AEEELFREHEALES
EAEERHEEARRE - 3hitt - A
SEZRBE(BEAERERK
fEE)RRE KRS EERE G
BHFEE - EAREHMAERH
DRFAE -
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)
During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was 0.85
and 0.79 as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

EBRFERAT —T—EFFR

22 BAERRHEE)

23

(e)

RAEE (&)

R-T—EF - NEEZ KRS
R-T—=F—1 EAERFELF
BEELHERANLERNEES
K o BT R HRBERLE
AREEATREARIRN TR 2B
B2 BITHkK  REBRAT
BR - BEFEEREILESR
ELARAEIA o

RIE-—NER_E—=F1+=
A=+—8 FaE8BREig
tEE(EER E3)H R A0.85 %
0.79 °

AR B R B AT B R AT
BIRINRETIE AN Z EAIRTE

MBEREERAAE
8 - Ban@it  MERE%ER
ERAREN —REERTESE -
BLRABREIAKENTBERRR
RERETXOMER -

(@)

FERER

AEENEERREEXREES
REMBYRBARRE KRS
EEAR - EEECERERER
RY SRFBEERMAEKGZEER

LA
ST}
ZoN

o
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 BB REEBERAAEE)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a) FERRE)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 month past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry and country in which customers
operate and therefore significant concentration of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 54% (2013: 32%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group's five largest
customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 14.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group
limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions that meet the established credit
rating or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 49% (2013: 27%) of
total cash and cash equivalents were deposited with a
financial institution in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bupr e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 HIKEBMEERAAEE)
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) BEE&FRBHERR

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent Company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Company’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
inthe short and longer term. Note 1(b) explains
management’s plans for managing liquidity needs of the
Group to enable it to continue to meet its obligations as
they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date] and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay:

EBRFERAT —T—EFFR

AEEETN @R 2 ERREH
BTERREZEME  BIEHR
& BEHRIERIIRE REREEFIA
FENTRHR S F R - HEMEER
BIESTEE 2B TREKFE -
ARGHAREFTE ZHE - K
RAZBRBEPERRN A
HZ RBERR - AERE R
RABRCHERRE EZ SR
BRANAGHEERE - ED
HEHRRARSIEF K - T
bR ERARERBESH
KBRS EEGUEE
ENFMELL -

TRINBAEERARBZIET
EERMEEREERAZHRTEN
HIREE - ERENAHARITR
Ren(BREBREBEHOEZHE -

HRFBMERBENEER
AEZAEXH) RAKERA
NARFHERERCBHEHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAEREERSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 BIBEBREERAAMEGE)
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) E€REBMERRRE
The Group AEE
2014
2N
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undis
SHRBRRLRY IR
Morethan  More than
Within 1year 2years Carrying Within
Tyearor  butwithin  butwithin  Morethan amount at y W More than
on demand 2years 5years BEH Total 31December ~ ondemand S years
)
-Fhg  BE-F RERE tZA=t-H
RER  EWER BIEA  BERF & HEE
$/000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
T T T Fr T
Bank loans RITEH 137917 133,012 451,396 938330 1,660,655 1,206,748 108,232 161,806 409156 1143565 1802759 1239326
Other payables and accruals  EHERFARGTRER 51,372 - - - 51,372 51,312 5472 - - - 53371 5337
Amounts due to related FERIBB 3R
parties - 235,961 - - 235,961 235,961 - 210,764 - - 210,764 210,764

189,289 368,973 451,39 938,330 1,947,988 1,494,079 161,604 352,568 40958 1143565 206889 1503462

The Company b/
2014
“2-pg
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounte
AHFRARERE BERS
Within More than Carrying Within More than Carrying
1yearor 1year but amount at 1year or 1 year but amount at
ondemand  within 2 years Total 31 December ondemand  within 2 years 31 December
—FaE Ba-F == —FRs BE—F
REAR BRER 2 AR ERER
$'000 $000 i $000
e Ser 7 S SE
Other payables and accruals HthENFERRER 2,114 - 2,114 2114 2102 - 2,102 2,102
Amount due to a related party R E - 30,000 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 30,000
2,114 30,000 2,114 2,114 2102 30,000 32,102 32,102
Financial guarantees issued: BRI ERER
- Maximum amount of quarantee  —ERZZBAE (H5E27)
[note 27) = = - - 3,000 - 3,000 -

104 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from

bank borrowings. The Group’'s bank borrowings at
31 December 2014 were issued at variable rates and
fixed rates and therefore expose the Group to cash

flow interest rate risk. The Group's and the Company's

interest rate profile as monitored by management is set

out in (i) below.

(i)

ERERARAT

Interest rate profile

The Group
A5E

MBEREERRDAMBEE)

(c) F=mpb
AEBZMEERERKERIT
B8 - AEER T —MOF+—
A=+—RZRITEERZHH
KREEMEETR - AfMSAE
EEER RN ERER - AEE
RARBZMEHABEEEE
ISR T XH)A °

i) FIRER

The Company
ARH

Net fixed BEER/
rate deposits/ (RE)FE:
(borrowings):

Time deposits EEH

Bank loans BIER

Net variable HEEY
rate deposits/ /(838
(borrowings):

Cash at bank FiciE

Bank loans RIER

Total net deposits/ 7530/ (&)
[borrowings) et

—TNEFR

2014
—E-RBF

Effective
interest rate Amount
BRA= &8
$000
T

0.60% 8,085

0.01% - 0.35% 31961
6.16%-6.55%  (1,206,746)
(1,168,799)

(1,160,714)

Effective
interest rate Amount
$000

s

6.00% (25,439)

(25,439)
0.01%-0.35% 56,993
210%-855%  (1.213887)
(1,156,894)
(1,182,333

2014
Z§-RE
Effective
interest rate Amount
BRA= ]
$1000
T

Amount
$000
T

0.01% 169 0.01% 8
169 8
169 8

105



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7E31/R

SAEAERRIN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

106

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's loss for the year and
accumulated losses by approximately $11,688,000
(2013: $11,569,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’'s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2013.

(d) Currency risk

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of storage and transshipment
income that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currency giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars ("USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to
be insignificant. As such, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

23

BREBEERERDAEGE)

(c) M=EmB(E)

(ii)

BRBED

R —WNFE+ = A
=+—H EAEHMA
BLEERERITENER
T EETEFRES EFH
THR—BHTF #25E
m/ R AEE 2 FAE
Bk RETEE 411,688,000
TL(ZE—=4F 11,569,000
JT) °

MA b B 8RE D AT IR R A
REPONBEEBREM
BT YEEBARMNZ
AAEHREFITESHE
TEZMERER - —A%H
TR IR EEEH
BEET—EFEEERH
ﬁZﬂﬁT%éﬁﬁ@Z
Al e oM RR
—:Eﬁﬂzgﬁﬁﬁ°

(d) E¥ER

(i)

IR S
AEEFEANEE
FEREBERAZEREE
HZEREEB R
%ﬁ%%EﬁM%?§%
cBHERERAKRZE
MEE%%EU%ED

BB BXT
B AEERRE TR
XTEXZEHZARILT T
BEXR-RHit - WEZ5I8
RE DT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS SR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

ERRRARIA

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group's borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date.

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Overall exposure to currency risk 2 EHER

—T-mErER

23

B 5 R EAM B FIR
RekReFERARB

BBEBEERAAEGE)

(d) E¥EARGE)

(ii)

(iii)

ERAEERERE
ERNNBRAEBZIER
BN 2 B A 2 KA
B 5 RU AR FR - K
SEEeEHREHN N
iy AREEXRE AR
BHME  BRFZEHR
FrE— AR ZEZHKFE -

AREZFRBEEHNIE
MERCERBZIYEER
HE - At - EEEL A
BERAKEEZEES®ER
EREAZERERER

AEHNEE AR

TRIMAKREREER
EHAAEEERYGEE
BN 2 BB 2 B
REESREMELEZE
BRBRFEE - BIE25IZ
A BEREEEER ZE
KEBSBILIIR °

2014
—E-—MF
United States United States
Dollars Dollars
Ep e
$’000 $000
Trx Tt
2,534 419
3,654 213
6,188 1,332
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B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#S TSR

SAEAERRIN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(e)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2014 and 2013, except for the amounts due to
related parties which are unsecured, interest-free and
with no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it is
not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

24 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@)

(b)

108

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of certain
properties, which fall due as follows:

23

(e)

24
(a)

MR EER D AE(E)

ARE

FrEsm T Az ABRE&FEHEAR
TENERZE—=F+=
A=+—HZArBEIREERT
B - EIEH 2B REETER
HA 2 FESTRARS 5 5B AN - B
ZEEKT BEAESEAAEL
E|EE -

REHERH

AEMAEREBEA

REFER - NEERET A HEE
ZETHRERREHEBRIN 2R
RRERSAEZBIHANMT

The Group
REE

Within one year —F RN
After one year but within five years ~ —F&{EBRHFR
After five years hF&

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 10
years with fixed rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor
The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities
under operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year
was approximately $207 million (2013: $215 million).
The leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 15
years (2013: 1 to 15 years). None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

4,381 3,334
3,110 4,746

541 740
8,032 8,820

(b)

MAOTHER e — 2+ F 2 FH
EITHER - MAEESTE - 7B
BB ESELAES -

AEBMAE[HBA
AEEREEEHERHEETH
9\ AP T ek BEE

FRATHEZ S RITFIRAL
B2 07T (ZE—=4F : 21518
JC) c MENER—ZE+RE (=
E—=F: —E+RF)Z2FH
EITER - ZSEHEMESEK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bupr e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

24 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) The Group as lessor (continued)
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as
follows:

24 REHERHE)
(b) NEBEAHBAE)
AEBERBNAIEHEZLCERE
fEW 2 AR REAS@5AOT ¢

The Group
REME

2014
—2-msE

$°000

Within one year —FA
After one year but within five years ~ —#F&{EFHFER
After five years T

As set out in note 14(b) to the financial statements, the
Lessee requested to unilaterally terminate the Lease
Agreement. As a result, the above analysis does not
include the relevant operating lease receivables of the
Lease Agreement.

25 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2014, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $20 million (2013: $22 million).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately $149 million (2013: $149 million).

EBRRARAT —TEER

T

47,592
44,361
48,897

49,651
26,198
44,285

140,850 120,134

AEABETEERKIEAER
#ABERYEmRME
14(b) o BEtE - BRI ARFTA
ZHEHRENAEEEAERK

R

25 EAREE
W-Z—mE+—-—A=+—H K&
B RS ENE BB O M FRE
MEHERTAERNT ERERBEEZ
BABSZAEHABI20EBTL(ZE—=
& 0.22(87T) °

R-ZE—mME+—-A=+—H  &~&
Bt RS E N E BB O M FRE
MERRTOELESSH AR RR
MHREBEBEZ2EABAIAENA
149B T (=T —=4F : 1.49187T) °

109



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B R AR YL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZSTTHI7R

SAEAERRIN)

26

27

28

110

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in 2013 in respect of banking facilities granted to
its subsidiaries. The maximum liability of the Company as at
31 December 2013 under the guarantees is the amount of
the loans drawn by the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees of $3,000,000 (2014: $Nil). The loans have been
fully repaid in January 2014.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Vand Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

26

27

28

BBLZEARS

(R T AR BHESERBEOR S KA
B ARERBEBRIBATEAR
5

FREEEAEME
TZEBRBAEME XN ARRRE
E2eBRKMETRE) -

LRBEEITRB TR EHRAIE
VUAZHEEBER ZAFEBEZHH
EE e

RAREE

ERHHSEIER
R-E—=F+"A=+—H &AQ
AR TEMNBRAFTMNBRITRHER S
T-—FMRITELER -RZZ
—=Ff+=-A=+—8 " &A2aR
ERTHNEZRBEAZSIEREE
KB AR A mE /&R - B
3,000,000 c(=—FE—PF : Tjp) °
ZEEFEN _E—NE— AREE
3%0

BEERBRERE
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REANEBENEEZE QA REKRIE
f% 7 AVand Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited » E AR B L AL
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAFTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

ERRRARIA

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2014 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments and new standard would have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

—T-mErER

29

(BB LR ) —F—
B AR

(B BB EER ) —F——FF
CZE R

(BEEGHERDE165 K
(BBGRHER)EIBHRIETA —E-R"F-H—H
BBITE R#H IER T %

(BRI ELERDF 155 -
JREEFE RIATHEA

(BAEMBMEL)DFIN 2T A

EEMEREZE=-_Z—NE+=A
=t+—HIEFEMRERZIERT ~ #
FTEAIR R R E R 2 E

BEAMBHERD  BEGLE
EMMETRIER] K —B#IEL
BEREE—_F-—NME+-_A=+—H
IEEFE R ARERR - TRARERAN AR
BwE - R F AL RAKEAR 2
7] BRI -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RT3 BHH 2%

BB ZzesrHREEN

FEFED 1 July 2014
—E—OF+H—H

1 July 2014

—E—MFE+H—H

1 January 2016

1 January 2017
—E—+H—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—-A—H

AEEEEF R EETNERER
HIREHERZZE  BLS /IR
REEZLFER] KL ET LR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIR)

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1T—HLEE

2014
—E-mE
$'000
Fr
RESULTS 3
Turnover EERE 159,615 144,884 204,019 220,421 211,506
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI,/ (&) 63,545 (143,253) (124,608) (115,444)  (115,491)
Income tax Frigst (20,738) 182 573 584 125
Profit/(loss) attributable to N TIAR R &ML
equity shareholders of skl (E18)
the Company 37,020 (133,930) (116,713) (108,061) (108,814
Profit/(loss) attributable to  FEFEAREZS FE(E
non-controlling interests &%,/ (&18) 5,787 (9,141) (7,322 (6,799) (6,552)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF, (E18) 42,807 (143,071) (124,035) (114,860)  (115,366)

At 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2014
—E-IF

$'000
Fr

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #ERAE

Total assets BEER 1,899,914 2,009,661 1,907,379 1,831,548 1,710,331
Total liabilities EREvit 1,243,406 1464727 1486866 1511831 1,507,552
Non-controlling interests ~ JE{Z %2 54,117 47,449 40,096 34,441 27,744
Total equity attributable to AR FIRRFE(

equity shareholders of B

the Company 602,391 497,485 380,417 285,276 175,035
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